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Auditor's Report

To the Shareholders of GB Auto (S.A.E.)

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of GB Auto (S.A.E.),
which comprise the consolidated financial position as at December 31, 2022, and the
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows for the financial year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory notes.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of Company’s management.
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these Consolidated
financial statements in accordance with the Egyptian Accounting Standards and in the light of
the prevailing Egyptian laws, management responsibility includes, designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of Consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
management responsibility also includes selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Egyptian Standards on Auditing and
in the light of the prevailing Egyptian laws. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of GB Auto (S.A.E.) as at December 31,
2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with the Egyptian Accounting Standards and the Egyptian laws and
regulations relating to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

The financial information included in the Board of Directors’ report, prepared in accordance
with Law No. 159 of 1981 and its executive regulations, is in agreement with the Company’s
books of account, according to the limits of this information in books.

KPMG m Hassan

A

Public Accountants & Consultants

KPMG Hazem Hassan

Public Accountants and C 1
Cairo February 26, 2023 onsultants




(All amounts in thousand Egyptian Pound)

Assets
Non-current assets

GB Auto (S.A.E)

(An Egyptian Joint Stock Company)
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

as at December 31, 2022

Note
No.

31 December 2022

lation of consolidate cial statement

originally issued in Arabic

31 December 2021 Restated

Property, plant, equipment and projects under construction (Net) (16) 4945174 4252697
Assets right of use (17 431 535 440 333
Intangible assets and goodwill (18) 361277 367 215
Payments under investment 31) 12 54 528
Investment in associate (35 9 559 706 622910
Other investments with fair value through profit and losses (36) 106 500 104 000
Long term notes receivables (Net) (12) 2973743 5758369
Deferred tax assets (10-B) 257 769 331341
Investment property (19) 90 905 90 905
Debtors and other debit balances (14-A) 398 886 688 262
Subordinated Loan 50 000 -
Total non-current assets 19 175 567 12 710 560
Current assets

Assets held for sale 855 000 -
Inventories (Net) (1n 3920 044 4203342
Accounts and notes receivables (Net) (13) 3060 579 10 239 476
Debtors and other debit balances (Net) (14-B) 31323285 2 787 409
Due from related parties 34) 185 008 193 228
Cash on hand and at banks (15-A) 4098 083 1935 644
Total current assets 15 441 999 19 359 099
Total assets 34 617 566 32 069 659
Equity

Issued and paid in capital (20) 1085 500 1094 010
Treasury bills @2n - (8510)
Reserve for financial Solvency (44) 10711 -
General risk reserve (43) 131 49 472
Legal reserve 22) 533 542 523 961
Other reserves (23) 3277220 2140621
Private risk reserve - Non banking financial service (42) 20393 90 399
Retained Eaming 1820099 440 890
Net Profit for the year 9984 958 1408 511
Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent 16 732 554 5739354
Non-controlling interests (24) 728 195 1640720
Total equity 17 460 749 7380074
Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Loans (26) 2940313 3514992
Bond Payable Long term (39) 280 000 -
Long term notes payables and creditors 380317 588088
Right of use Liability 344 343 327299
Warranty provisions (28) 13 935 13 909
Deferred tax liabilities (10-B) 331615 348 657
Total non-current liabilities 4 290 523 4792 945
Current liabilities

Provisions (28) 346 315 282521
Current tax liabilities (10-A) 324 089 351279
Loans, borrowings and overdrafts (26) 6040 231 13 628 224
Due to related parties (34) 101 739 125 998
Bond Payable (39) 241 538 -
Trade payables and other credit balances 27 5812 382 5508618
Total current liabilities 12 866 294 19 896 640
Total liabilities 17 156 817 24 689 585
Total equity and liabilities 34 617 566 32 069 659

* The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated-financial statements, and to be read therewith.

Group Chief Financial Officer
Executive Board Member
Abbas Elsayed

%

**Auditor's report "attached"
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Translation of eonsoli ancial statements
originally fssuad in Arabic
GB Auto (S.A.E)
(An Egyptian Joint Stock Company)
Consolidated Statement of Income
for the financial vear ended 31 December 2022

(All amounts in thousand Egyptian Pound) Note No. 31 December 2022 31 December 2021 Restated
Operating revenue 29 785079 31437533
Operating cost (21 676 143) (25 134 960)
Gross profit 8112934 6302573
Other income (8) 285557 184 364
Selling and marketing expenses (2 164 790) (1 849 389)
General and administrative expenses (2 048 396) (1 582 763}
Provisions and Impairment of Current and Non-Current assets (Net) (€))] (229 788) (130 938)
Operating Profit 3955517 2923 847
Finance costs (Net) )] (962 993) (551 569)
Gain from sale & Revaluation of investment (35) 100 587 (40 592)
Gain from sale & Revaluation of investment (40) 8 207 309 -
Net profit for the year before income tax 11 300 420 2331686
Income tax {expense) (10-C) (762 322) (563 274)
Net profit for the year after tax 10 538 098 1768 412
Attributable to:
Shareholder's of the parent company 9 984 538 1408 511
Non-controlling interests 553 140 359901

10538 098 1768 412
Basic earning per share (EGP/Share) %) 9.175 . 1.238

* The accompanying nofes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements, and to be read therewith.
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Translation of interim financial statements
Qriginally issued in Arabic
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GB Auto {5.A.E)
{An Egyptian Joint Stock Company)
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

]

for the financial year ended 31 December 2022

1

(All amounts in thousand Egyptian Pound) N£;° 31 December 2022 31 December 2021 Restated
Ll
m Net profit for the year after income tax 10 538 098 1768 412
{'_] Other comprehensive income items
[]
[:I Foereign currency translation difference 1429 548 (14 825)
Foreign currency translation losses (45) (447 997) -
EI Modification surplus of fixed assets result (13 580) (22 284)
D Total other comprehensive income for the year before income tax 967 971 (37109
Income tax related to other comprehensive income item 2983 4 886
D Other comprehensive income for the year after income tax 970 954 (32223
I:I Total other comprehensive income for the year 11 509 052 1736 189
D Other comprehensive income is attributable to:
Shareholder's of the parent company 11289 557 1 400 655
D Non-controlling interests 219495 335534
D 11 509 052 1736 18%

* The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements, and to be read therewith,
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Translation of Consolidated financial statements
Originally igsued in Arabic

-]

GB Auto (5.A.E)
(An Egyptian Joint Stock Company)
Consolldated Statement of Cash Flows

for the financial year ended 31 December 2022

_]

(All amounts in thousand Egyptian Pound)

]

Note No. 31 December 2022 31 December 2021 Restated

_]

Net profit for the year before tax 11 300 420 2131 686
Adfustments for:
[_} Interest expense (N 890717 733 545
Depreciation and amartization for the perdod (16:112,18) 451 098 426281
Provisions movements (net} {28) 81784 182 146
{_] Impairment losses on current assets (net} 159 270 44 709
Interast income ¢} (166 751) (170032)
i_] Gain from sale & Revaluation of investment (40) (8 207 309) -
o Gain from sale of property, plant, equipment and assets held for sale © (15053) (57023)
r-] ! in iates and liquidation losscs (] ( 100 587} 40 592
Dividends Distrbution From Associates 6143 -
Forsign currency ranslation losses { 447 597} -
n 3951725 3531904
Changes in:
[_] Inventorics 471 040 {836 794)
Accounts and notes receivables 10295 375 (4033 848)
Debtors and ather debit balances (414 234} (1 605 003)
D Due from related parties (69673) {137186)
Due to related parties (24259 5800
D Payment rent for asset right of use (63 364) {66 245)
Proceeds from loans and barrowings (7 062 762) 2 625 508
D Trade payables and other ¢redit balances 708 614 1992 141
Cash provided from operating activities 17192462 1476677
D Provisions used (28 234) {7407
Income tax paid {729999) (305 001}
Employees and members of the boaré of directars {96 029) ( i09 428)
I:] Net cash provided from operating activities 6938200 938171
Cash flows lrom Investing activitfes
[:] Payment for acquisition of property, plant, cquipment and projects under constructions (1160574) (485 789)
Pay to buy non controlling interest . (206 Q10)
Proceeds from sale of shares from subsidaries - 273750
D Payment for acquisition of intangible assers (6113) {2451)
Interest income received 121 803 132919
D Payment under investment 54 456 (54 456)
Praceed from sale of invasment 1361 104 -
Net investments in associates (40-3) {2 456 148) {9 750)
D Payment for other investments - ( 104 000)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant, equipment and assais held for sale 25 02% 166 481
[*"} Paid to buy asset held for sale {855 000) -
Net ¢ash (used in) Investing activities {2 511 448) { 28% 306)
[77] Cash flows from financing activities
— Proceeds from non controlling interest to increase capital of subsidiaries - 588
o Payment to Purchase Treasury bills - (38 682}
L] Boads 521538 }
Dividends Distrhution {403 950} {299 236)
- Dividends paid.-minoﬁty eqm:ty {150 507) {154 414)
L) Gain Prom selling Treasury bills - 30232
Proceeds from lcans and borrowings (1655 910) 475 641
u Detzeast capital of subsidary {5361) (80471)
Long-Term notes payable {207 17} 263 006
Interest expense paid ( 943 502) { 766 910)
L_] Net cash(used in) financing activities (228%473) {570 2d6)
et Increase In ¢ash and eash equivalents 1737279 128 619
L__J Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the periad 1935 991 17273830
Effect of movements in exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents 424914 9542
L_j Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period (15-B} 4098184 1935931
Lo * The accompanying notes form an integral part of these lidated financial and o be read th ith.
iJ
o
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Translation of consolidated financial statements
Originally issued in_Arabic

GB Auto (S.A.E)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended December 31, 2022
(In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

1- Background of the Group

4-

GB Auto Co. is an Egyptian joint stock Company incorporated on July 15,1999 under the name of GB Capital
for Trading and Capital Lease and under Law No. 159 of 1981, and was registered in the commercial register
under No. 3422, Cairo.

Based on the decision of the Extraordinary General Assembly Meeting held on April 26, 2007, it has been
agreed to change the Company’s name to be GB Auto. This amendment was registered in the commercial
register on May 23, 2007.

The Company is domiciled in the Industrial Zone — Abou Rawash Kilo meter 28 Cairo — Alexandria Desert
Road, Arab Republic of Egypt.

The Company and its subsidiaries (will be referred to as “the Group”) main activities include trading,
distributing and marketing of all transportation means including heavy trucks, semi-trucks, passenger cars,
buses, mini buses, micro buses, agriculture tractors, pick-ups, mechanical tools equipment for sail movement
and motors with their different structures and types whether locally manufactured and imported new and used
ones and trading in spare parts, accessories whether locally manufactured or imported and tires for vehicles
and equipment whether locally manufactured or imported. The Group also undertakes import and export
activities, selling locally manufactured and imported products for cash, on credit or through finance leasing
and microfinance. Also trade in all goods including light truck and sale by instalments and provide services
of factoring and nonbanking financial services. The factoring services intended to buy existing and future
rights of sellers of goods and services and provide related services.

The major shareholder’s of the Company are the family of Dr. Raouf Ghabbour who collectively owns
approximately 63.38% of the Company’s shares as at 31 December, 2022,

The consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on
February 26, 2023.

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated interim financial statements have been prepared in accordance with an updated Egyptian
Accounting Standards (EAS) and the related Egyptian laws and regulations.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Egyptian Pounds which is the Group’s functional
currency.

Use of judgement and estimates

- In preparing the consolidated financial statements in accordance with Egyptian Accounting Standards
(EAS), management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the
Group’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. These
estimates and assumptions are based on past experience and various factors. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

- Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

- The recognition of the change in accounting estimates in the period in which the change in estimate, if

the change affects only that period, or in the period of change and future periods if the change affects
both.
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Translation of consolidated financial statements
Originally issued in Arabic

GB Auto (S.A.E)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended December 31, 2022
(In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

A- Measurement of fair value

I N I R B
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[

The fair value of financial instruments determines based on the market value of a financial instrument or
similar financial instruments at the date of the financial statements without deducting any estimate future
costs of sale. The financial asset values determine at current prices for the purchase of those assets, while
determining the value of financial liabilities at current prices, which could be settled by those
commitments.

In the absence of an active market to determine the fair value of financial instruments, the fair value is
estimated using various valuation techniques, taking into consideration the transactions price that has
recently or be guided by the current fair value of other instruments which is substantially similar. Or the
use of discounted cash flow or any other evaluating method that leads to results can rely on it.

When using the discounted cash flow method as a way for the evaluation, the future cash flows are
estimated based on the best estimates of management. And determined the discount rate used in the
prevailing market price at the date of the financial statements of financial instruments are similar in nature
and terms.

5- Operating Segments
- The Group has the following four operational segments, which are its reportable segments to top
management. These segments offer different products and services and are managed separately
because they require different technology and marketing strategies.
- The following summery describes the operations for each reportable segment:

Reportable Operations
segment

Passengercar  Trading, distributing and marketing for all kinds of passenger cars,
whether locally manufactured or imported.

Buses and Trading, distributing and marketing for all kinds of heavy trucks, semi-

trucks trucks, buses, mini buses, micro buses, agriculture tractors, whether locally
manufactured or imported.

2 &3 Wheels  Trading, distributing and marketing for all kinds of 2 & 3 Wheels, whether
locally manufactured or imported.

Financial Providing services of factoring and financial services non-banking.
Services non- The factoring services intended to buy existing and future rights of sellers
Banking of goods and services and provide related services and selling the locally

and imported goods and products by cash or post-paid financial leasing,
small financing entities in all kinds of goods and trading such as light
transportation and selling it by installments,
Other Trading spare parts, and its accessories whether locally manufactured or
Operations imported, tires for vehicles and equipment whether locally manufactured
or imported and exported.

-10-
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Translation of Congolidated cial statements
Originally issued in Arabic
GB Auto (S.A.E)

Motes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended December 31, 2022
{In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

§-OperatingSegments({Continued)

A-Total Revenue

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Passenger car 33.88% 47.13%
Buses and trucks 4.04% 4.05%
2 & 3 Wheels 12.71% 19.09%
Financial Services non-Banking 19.45% 20.73%
QOther Operations 29.92% 9.00%
B-Revenue from foreign operations

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Passenger car 13.88% 6.93%
2 & 3 Wheels 51.81% 34.55%
G- Segments resulfs

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Passenger car 27.36% 30.38%
Buses and trucks 3.48% 0.22%
2 & 3 Wheels 12.39% 16.65%
Financial Services non-Banking 50.68% 46.81%
Other Operations 6.09% 5.94%
D-Assets

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Passenger car 16.3% 11.5%
Buses and frucks 14.8% 10.2%
2 & 3 Wheels 11.2% 8.4%
Financial Services non-Banking 33.5% 53.1%
Other Operatlons 24.2% 18.8%
E- Liabilities

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Passenger car 18.6% 26.0%
Buses and trucks 24.4% 16.6%
2 &3 Wheels 11.2% 1.3%
Financlal Services non-Banking 33.5% 50.9%
Other Operations 12.3% 5.2%

-11-
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GB Auto (S.AE)

Transtation of Consolidated financial statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended December 31, 2022
{In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptlan Peunds unless otherwliss stated)

Originally issued in Arabic

5-OperatingSegments (Continued)

F-Reconciliations of information on reportable segments to financial statements according to EASs

Revenues

Total revenues for operating segments
Elimination of inter-segment revenue
Consolidated Revenue

Segments resuelf,

Gross profit for operating segment
Elimination of inter-segment gross profit
Consoclidated Gross Profit

Assets

Total assets for operating segments
Elimination Inter-segment assets

Total Consolidated Assets

Liabilities

Total Liabilities for oparating segments
Elimination inter-segment Liabilittes
Total Consolidated Liabilities

G-Other martial amounts

Finance income
Interest expense and Bank Charges
Capital expenditure

Depreciation and Amortization

Finance income

interast expense and Bank Charges
Capital expenditure

Depreciation and Amartization

December 31, 2022

31 December 2021 Restated

32576933 35022 129
(2 787 854) {3 591 598)
29 789 079 31437 533

8188585 6 384 396

(75 661) {81823)
8112 934 6302 573
62 435 956 52141142

(27 818 380) (20 071 483)
34 617 566 32 069 659
30 649 859 33 296 308
(13493 042) (B 606 723}
17 156 817 24 689 585
Total reportable
segment Adjustments
166 751 -

(903 920) 13203

(1166 692) -
451 098 -
Total reportable .
seqment Adjustments
170 032 -
{772 645) 39100
{ 488 240} -
420 369 -

Total consolidated

December 31, 2022

166 751
{ 890 717)
(1 166 692)

451093

Total consolidated
December 31, 2021

170 032
{ 733 545)
{ 488 240)

420 369
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Translation of conolidzted financial statements
Originally issved in Arabic
GB Auto (S.AE)
Notes 1o the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended December 31, 2022

(In the notes all armounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)
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7-Finance Costs (Net)

December 31, 2022 Decermnber 31, 2021

Interast income 147 4714 149 652
Interest income on instaliment sales 18280 20380
Forelgn excharge gain - 11 844
Taotzl Finance Income 166 751 181 976
Interest expense and bank charges (830 717) ( 733 545)
Foreign exchange loss (239 027) -

Total Finance Cost (1129 744) (733 545)

Net Finance Cost (962 993) ( 551 569}

8-Provisions and Impairment of Current and Non-Current assets

Provisions no longer required
December 31, 2022

31 December 2021 Restated

Warranty provision 30 067 11 450
Expected credit loss for accounts and notes receivables 15077 131228
E;Ea?}it:: credit loss for debtors and other debit 16 751 2067
Other Provisions 9 500 7857
Expected credit loss for Cash and cash equivalents 332 1274
Total provisions no longer required . 71727 153677
Provisions formed

Warranty provision [ 54 543) ( 40 707)
Impairment of accounts and notes receivable { 109 5821} ( 148 534}
Impairment of due from related parties { 19053) [ 41 000)
Impairment of debtors and cther debit balances { 44 586) { 18 306}
Other provisions (73812) { 66 068)
Total provisions formed (301 515) (284615
Net provisions in the income statement (220788) (130 938)

-14-
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Translation of consolidated financial statements

Originally issued in Arabic
GB Auto (S.AE)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended December 31, 2022
{In the notes all amounis are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

the impact of
the change in

Balance Impairment Disposal Ev:ir::nleﬁz Effect of egyptian Balance at
at during the  During the duprin the movements of accounting 3111212022
1M1/2022 year year egr exchange rates standard
y charget on
equity

Expected credit loss
for Accounts & Notes 560 409 109 521 (289 532) {15077) 1454 - 366 775
receivable
Expected credit loss
for due from related 36 730 19053 - - &840 - 64 623
parties
Expected credit loss . 3
for Debtors & Other 47 522 44 586 (16 751) 2043 77 400
debit balances
forQash and cash 347 86 . { 332) . . 101
equivalent

645 008 173 246 (289 532) {32 160) 12 337 - 508 899
" Impairment of 53919 39338 - (21154) . - 72103
Inventory

698 927 212 584 { 289 532) (53 314} 12 337 - 581 002

*The formation and reversal of inventory impairment are charged in cost of revenue at income statement.

9-Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net profit for the year by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares issued during the year.

The General Assembly unanimously agreed an 24/3/2022 to distrbute dividends for the financial year ending on
3112/2021 amount to distrbute 379 925 000 EGP (at the rate 0.35 Piasters per share in the total capital
1 085 500 000 after excluding treasury shares of 8 509 733 shares)

it was also agreed on the payment would be in two installments ;
the first on 21/4/2022 will be 10 piasters per share while the second payment cn 29/9/2022 it will be 25 piasters per
share and the generai authority for investment approved the decision on 3/04/2022

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 Restated
Net profit for the period
attributable to the shareholders 9984 858 1408 511
Weighted average number of 1088 222 1093 624
ordinary shares issued
Basic profit eamings per share/ 9.175 1.288
EGP
10-Income tax
A-Income tax liabilities

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Balance at 1 January 351279 296 730
Taxes paid during the ( 729 999) (305 001)
period
Current income tax
during the period 702 809 359 550
{Note 10-C)
Balance at the end 124 089 351 279
of the period

-15-
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GB Aulo (S.AE)

Translation of consolidated {inancial statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements fer the financial year ended December 31, 2022
(In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Originglly Issued in Arabic

10-dncome tax (Continued)

B-Defarred tax assets and liabilities {Continued)

Unrecognised deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets have not been recogrised in respect of the following items, because it Is not probable that futura taxable profit will be available
against which the group can use the benefits therefrom.

Expected ¢redit loss for accounts and

notes raceivables
Expected credit loss for other debit
balances

Foreign currency translation losses

December 31, 2022

December 31, 2021

82624

17 415
100 799

126 082

Liability for temparary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, assoclates and joint venture was not recognized because the graup controls
the timing of revarsal of the related temporary differences and satisfied that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

C-Income tax (expanses)

Current income fax (Note 10-A)

Deferred tax expenses — (Nate 10-B)

Income tax for the period

D-Amounts recognized in OCI

Fereign Currency translaticn difference

Madification surplus of fixed assets
cost

11-Inventories

Goods in transit

Cars, buses and frucks

Raw material and car components
Spare parts for sale

Wark in progress

Tires

Qils

Total

* Impairment of inventory

Net

December 31, 2022

December 31, 2021

{ 702 809) { 350 550)

{59513) {203 724)

{762 322) {563 274)

Dacembar 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Before Tax Taxes After Tax Before Tax Taxes After Tax
1425 548 - 1429548 { 14 B25) - (14 825)

{13 580) 2983 { 10 597) { 22 284) 4886 (17398)
1 415 968 2983 1418 951 {37 109) 4886 (32223)

December 31, 2022

December 31, 2021

561 352 1085 434
1681 277 1536 578
791 597 736 660
681779 450 787
171 aot 165 098.
102 808 209 247
2335 4458
3992 147 4 257 261
{72 103) (53919)
3920 044 4203 342

* The formation and reversal of [nvantory impairment are chargad In cost of ravenue at Income statement.
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3B Auto (S.A.E}
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended December 31, 2022
{In the notes all amounts are shawn in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

12-Long term notes receivablas

Dacamber 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Long-term notas receivable 3 488 544 & 650 869
Interest incerne on installment sales { 431 255) (782 428)
Net prasent value for long-tarm notes
recelvable 3 057 289 5368 141
Expected credit loss long-term notes
receivable {83 548) (109772)
Nat 2973743 5 758 369
13-Accounts and notes receivables

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Yotal notes receivable 2675735 10 541 069
Lang-term notes recelvable (Note 12)
Unamortized interest (431 255} { 782 426}
Net present value for shori-term notes 2 244 480 9758 641
raceivabla
Trade recalvahble 1099 328 931 472
Total 3343808 10 690 113
Expected credit lass for accounts and
notes receivabla balances (283 229) (450 837)
Net 3 060 579 10 239 476

The fallowing tabla represents the Expected credit loss of account and rotes recelvables accorging to the expected losses model on  December 31, 2022:

1-Non Banking -Financial Services

Stage 1: Expoctad Stage 3: Lifa Expected

Stage 2: Lifatime ECL is

cradit losses aver not cradit Impaired Credit Losses with impaired Total
12 months paire cradit
Account & notes racivables 3773 362 524 432 497 254 4795043
Adjust:
Impalrment of accounts and notes
recaivable balances { 38 985) {36 833) (126 373) {202 191}
3736377 485 599 370 881 4 592 857
2- Passenger cars, transport, buses and motorceysles sectar - 3 wheels and other cparations
The Balance The percentage of Decrease in the balance of Net
axpected losses account & notes recivable
Notes Recivable 534 288 21% { 110 608) 423 680
Srade recivatles 679 197 3.8% {25 790) 653 407
Fram 1 {0 30 236 230 2% {3705 232 525
From 31 to 80 70140 2% {1333} 63 80T
From 61 to 80 18 202 4% ( 627) 14 578
From 9110 120 23110 1% (2 442} 20 668
Mcre than 120 47 882 42% (26 079) 27 803
Total 1 606 049 { 164 584) 1441 465

18-
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GB Auto (S.A.E)

Translation of conolidated financial statements
Originally issued in Arabic

Notes ta the consalidated financial statements for the financial year ended December 31, 2022
(In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

14-Debtors and other debit balances
A-Long term debtors and other debit balance

December 31, 2022

December 31, 2021

Debt securitization Companies 398 886 689 733

Provision of Expected credit loss - (1471)
388 386 688 262
B-Dabtors and other debit balances
December 31, 2022 Dacember 31, 2021
Advance payments to suppliers 764 608 789 448
Withholding tax 575 6580 450 968
Value added tax 47 714 41 378
Accrued interest 44 948 40 606
Accrued revenue 6040 2739
Letters of credit 1070 366 791 566
Prepaid expenses 78 339 172 946
Security deposits with others 24 098 31938
Letters of guarantee margin 332354 285 919
Staff loans and custodies 33493 37 004
Other debit balances 420 793 187 613
Customs duties 1452 2808
Total 3 400 685 2834 931
Lr:::e:;r:sent of debtor and other debit (77 400) (47 522)
Net 3323285 2787 409
15-Gash and cash equivalents
A-Cash and cash equivalents
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Time deposits 145 745 359 595
Current accounts 3852503 1308674
Checks under collections 74 990 230 343
Treasury bills 24 856 37379
Total 4098 184 193597
xzslri;:tnegn::g;s:_fand cash equivilant ( 101) ( 347)
Net 4098 083 1935644

B-Cash and cash equivalents

December 31, 2022

December 31, 2021

Cash and cash equivalents

4098 184

1935 991

4098 184

1935 991

-18-
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GB Auto (5.A.E)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended December 31, 2022
(In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless atherwise stated)

Translation of consolidated financial statements

Originally issued in Arabic

17- Asset Right Of Use

The company applied an Egyptian Accounting Standard No. (49) (lease contracts) as of January 1, 2021, and this resulted in the

recognition of right of use assets and liabilities as follows:

Cost

Balance at January 1, 2021

Asset right of use during the year

Balance at December 31, 2021

Balance at January 1, 2022

Asset right of use during the year

Disposals during the year

Effect of exchange rates

Balance at December 31,2022

Accumulated depreciation at January 1, 2021

Depreciation during the year

Balance at December 31, 2021

Accumulated depreciation at January 1, 2022
Depreciation during the year
Disposals during the year

Effect of exchange rates

Accumulated depreciation at December 31, 2022

Net Book value at December 31, 2022
Net Book value at December 31, 2021

Land & building Total
537 049 537 049
537 049 537 049
537 049 537 049
151 703 151 703

{ 118 659) ( 118 659)
63 383 63 383
633 476 633 476
96 716 96 716
96 716 96 716
96716 96 716
115 344 115 344
(21 705} {21 709)
11 590 11 5%0
201 941 201 941
431 535 431 535
440 333 440 333

The right of use is represented in renting warehouses and showraoms, which are used in

the activities of the group companies.
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Tranglation of consolidated financial statements
Criginally issued in Arabic

GB Auto (S.A.E)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended December 31, 2022
(In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

18- Intangible assets and goodwill
Right to use

Goodwill Computer software  Knowhow trademark Total
Cost
Balance at 1 January 430 155 64 630 5703 - 500 488
Adjustments [ 177 375) - - 177375 -
Balance at | January Restated 252 T80 64 630 5703 177 375 500 488
Additions during the year - 6118 - - 6118
Balarce at December 31, 2022 252 780 70 748 5703 177 375 506 606
Accumulated amortization
Balance at 1 Janvary - 44 795 5703 - 50 498
Adjustments - - - 32775 82775
Balance at | January Restated - 44 795 5703 82 775 133 273
Amortization during the year - 6 143 - 5913 12 056
Balance at Deccember 31, 2022 - 50938 5703 88 688 145 329
Net Book value at December 31, 2022 252 780 15810 - 83 687 361 277
Net Book value at December 31, 2021 Restated 252 780 15 835 - 94 600 367215

Goodwill

On September 8, 2008, GB Auto Company fully acquired the shares of GB for financial lease (S.A.E) which its business Is financial leasing
with all its dated, and the acquisition resulted in goodwill amounted to EGP 1 million.

During November 2010, the Group entered into §0% investment as a joint venture agreement in Almajmoa Alalamia Litjaret Alsaiarat {(GK),
in Jordan, 1o acquire the existing business of Hyundai Vehicles Agency in [raq, the joint venture agreement gives the group the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of (GK) and as a result of this investment the group recognized 2 goodwill with an Amount 249
EGP. During the period the greup Increased its stake in The International Graup For Cars Trading Campany (GK) from 50% to 83.33% (Note
no.42).

On October 26, 2017 GB Auto Company fully acquired the shares of Egyptian International Maintenance and cars Manufacturing Company
EIAC (SAE), and the acquisition resulted in goodwill amounted EGP 2.8 million.

Goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash generating units according to operaling segments as presented below:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Hyundai Iraq sales 248 910 248 310
Financial leasing activity I Q00 1060
After Sale service- FC 1870 2870
252 780 252 780
22
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Translation of consolidated financial statements

Originally issued in Arablc
GB Auto (5.A.E)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended December 31, 2022
(In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyplian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

18-Intangible assets and goodwill (Continued)

The Company assesses annually the impairment of goodwill at December 31, to ensure whether the carrying amount of
the goodwill is fully recoverable, unless there are indicators required fo test the impairment through the year.

Impairment of goodwill is assessed based on value in use, which is determined using the expected discounted cash
flows based on estimated business plan approved by the Board of Directors covering five years' period. The
management is preparing these estimated business plan based on the financial, operating and market performance in
the previous years and its expectations for the market development.

Right to use frademark

On June 28, 2007, GB Auto fully acquired the shares of Cairo Company for Personal Transportation Industries (City) by
purchasing 49.03%, which was owned by the minority, at a value of 210 million Egyptian pounds, in return for obtaining
shares from the issuance of shares to increase the capital of the company. GB Aute. Based on this acquisition, the
company obtained the right to use the trademark of one of the company's main suppliers related to the activity of the
2&3 wheleers Sector, at an amount of 177 million Egyptian pounds on the date of acquisition.

19-Investments property

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Balance at 1 January 80 505 90 905
Balance at the end of the period 90 905 90 905
2{-Issued and pald in capital

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Authorized capital (5 000 000 000 shares with par value
EGP 1 each) 5 000 OGO 5008 000
TIssued and paid capital (1 094 009 733 shares with par
value of EGF 1 cach) 1085 500 1094 010

On August 31, 2014, the Board of Directors according to the delegation of the extra ordinary assembly meeting held on
June 27, 2013, has decided unanimously to increase the Company's issued capital with the par value in the limit of the
authorized capital with an amount of EGP 8 444 645 divided on 6 444 645 shares with a par value of 1 EGP fshare,
wholly allocated to ESOP system which is applied by the Company, resulted in an issued capital of

EGP 135 337 545 after the increase divided on 135 337 545 shares with a par value of 1 EGP/share, and this increase
financially fully paid from the special reserve balance and annotated in the commercial register

at December 31, 2014.

Private placement (Capital Increase)

At the date of February 4, 2015, the extra ordinary general assembly meeting, has agreed to increase the Company's
authorized capital from 400 million EGP to 5 billion EGP and to increase the Company's Issued capital from EGP 135
337 545to be EGP 1 085 337 545 with an increase of EGP 960 000 000 to be divided on

1095 337 545 shares with a par value of 1 EGP each. (In additional to issuance cost of 1 pts./share), and that increase
to be fully allocated for the favor of old shareholders each according to their share in the Company's issued capital , and
it Is agreed to use the subscription right separately from the original share, with the Company's issued capital increase
to be paid either cash andfor using due cash debts for the subscriber by the Company according to thelr contribution
share.

The subscription was covered hy an amount of EGP 858 672 188 (EGP 473 225 502 in Cash and EGP 485 446 686
covered through the outstanding balances due to shareholders) divided on 958 672 188 shares with a par value of
1 EGP 2ach to be the total capital issued and fully paid after the increase equals to EGP 1 094 008 733, it has been
annotated in the commercial register at May 31, 2015.

The Exfraordinary General Assembly unanimously agreed on June 5, 2022 ta destroy the company's treasury shares
amounting to 8,509,733 shares and to reduce the capital by the amount of these shares, so that the issued and paid-up
capital of the company after the reduction becomes 1,085,500,000 Egyptian pounds, and it was approved by the
General Authority for Investment on 3/8/2022 it was noted in the Commercial Register on August 15, 2022.

Misr for Central Clearing Depsitory & Registry accepted the implementation of the capital reduction decision on
October 26, 2022.

-23-
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Translation of consolidated financial statements

Originally issued in Arabic
GB Auto (S.AE)}

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended December 31, 2022
(In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egypttan Pounds unless otherwise stated)

2]-Treasury Bills

On March 1, 2020, the Board of Directors of the company decided to purchase treasury shares with an amount of 10 000 000
shares of the company, which represents 0.914% of the total shares of the company, through the open market, and that
implementation be carried out from the session of March 2, 2020 and Until April 2, 2020, or until the full amount is executed, with
the same price of the security during trading sessions in the execution period in light of the amendment issued in Article {51) bis of
the registration rules issued by the Board of Directors of the Financial Supervisory Autharity No. 27 of 2020 on February 29, 2020
And that works in it as of the date of its issuance, as well as the statement posted on the announcement screens on the Egyptian
Stock Exchange on March 1, 2020 regarding the exceptional procedures for companies whose securities are listed on the stock
exchange wishing to purchase treasury shares.

During the period from March 3,2020 to March 18, 2020 ,The cormpany has purchased 10 million shares with a total value of 19.570
million Egyptian pounds. The amount of 10 million pounds has been recorded as treasury shares representing the nominal value of
the share. The difference between the purchase cost and the nominal value of the amount of 9.570 million Egyptian pounds has
been recorded in the other reserves {Note 23).

During the year of 2020, the company sold 2 million shares with a total value of 6 750 million Egyptian pounds, resulting ina
reduction of 2 million Egyptian pounds, This represents the nominal value of the share, and the difference between the sale value
and the nominal value of 4 750 million Egyptian pounds was recorded within the other reserves .

During the period from January 1, 2021 to March 31, 2021, the company sold 8 million shares with a total value of 30 232 million
Egyptian pounds, resulting in a reduction of 8 millien Egyptian pounds. This represents the nominal value of the share and tha
difference between the sale value and the face value of 22,232 miltlion Egyptian pounds among other reserves (Note 23)

During the period from November 28, 2021 o December 21, 2021The company has purchased 8 509 733 shares with a total value
of 38 681 million Egyptian pounds. The amount of 8 510 million Egyptian pounds has been recorded as treasury shares
representing the neminal value of the share, The difference between the purchase cost and the nominal value of the amount of 30
172 million Egyptian pounds has been recorded in the other reserves {Note 23),

On June 5, 2022 the Extraordinary General Assembly unanimously approved the execution of the company’s treasury shares,
amounting te 8,508,733 shares, and the reduction of the capital by the amount of these shares, so that the issued and paid-up
capital of the company after the reduction became 1 085 500 000 Egyptian pounds, and it was approved by the General Autherity
for investment on August 3, 2022,

2%-Legal reserve

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Balance at 1 January 523 961 45) 064
Transferred to legal reserve 9 581 72 897
Balance at the end of the period 533 542 523 961

In accordance with the Companies Law No 159 of 1981 and the Company's arficles of association, 5% of annual net profit is
transferred to the legal resarve. Upon the recommendation of the board, the Company may stop such transfer when the legal
reserve reaches 50% of the issued capital. The legal reserve is not eligible for distribution to shareholders.

The legal reserve includes an amount of EGP 66 762 related to the Company, the rest of the balance represents the legal reserve
of the Group's Companies

94
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Translaton of esnsslidated financia) slatsments
Odginally lssued in Arable

58 Aula (S.AE)
Notes {o the consolidalad financlal statamanls far tha financial ysar ended Decambsr 34, 2022
{In the notes all ameunts are shown, [n Thousand Egyplian Pounda unless alherwise stated)

23-Other reserves
ESOP Serplos

Share
Fareign currency Revaluation prewmlum
of fixed Total
translationzeserve  (Falr vahue) resorve (apecial
resrve reserves)
Balance na st Januscy 1, 2022 1 067 261 BE 882 80 435 904 041 2 140 621
Foreign currency diferences 1 147 197 - - - 1147127
Modification surplus of Gxed assets Cost - - { 10 598) - [ 10558)
Ralunee 2t December 31, 2022 2 234 460 48 382 63 837 S04 043 ER >

Shara premium

The share gremium raprasented [n the diffsrence batwaen the amount paid and par value for lssued shares and fssuance cost la deducted from it The share premium waa lranaferrad to both legal reserve and
spactal resarve aceording Lo Law No. 158 of 1981,

December 31, 2032 December 31, 2021
Share premium 904 041 904 B4l

The spacial rassrva raprasented in Lha tansfarred amosiunt from the net shara pramlum In 2007 lasa the amount transfared to the legal raserve (Note 22).
During 2011, tha spacial raserva was reducad by an ameunt of EGP 2 330 thousand which reprasants the diffarance batwssn lreasury sharas purchasing cost amounted ta EGP 3 087 thousand and the par

valua of thess shares amounted to EGP 107 thousand whizh was wiitten off during 2012,

During 2012, tha spaclal reserva waa raducad by an ameunt of EGF 2 114 thousand which reprasenta the diffsrences betwaan treasury shares purchasing soat amounted to EGP 8 385 thousand and Ils reselling
prica ameunlad to EGP 4 251 Lhausand.

The shars pramium waa raducad by an amount of 8 570 thousand EGP ,which rapresent the diffarsnce bstwean cost of purchasing Ureasury sharea during the ysar 2020 wilh an amount of
19 570 thousand EGP and ths par valus of shares of 10 millon EGP,

The shars pramium has alsc basn [ncraased by an amount of 4,750,000 Egyptian pounds, reprasanting khe differance betwasn the aals price of treasury shares during the year 202¢ by an amount of 8,750,000
Egyptlan pounds and the nominal value of tha sharas of 2 milllon Egyplian pounds.

24-Non-contralliog Iaterest

Tatal
Private pisk
" Paymeot Under Generat risk December 31, 2021
Capital enpital incresse Reserves  Legalrescrve  reserve - Non Feserie Retalned carnings  Decomber 31, 2022 Restated
banklng

Balanceat 1 January LD 2138 283 8CF 56 755 36 528 19 918 505 21% 1640 T20 1 435 969
Adjustments = - - - - - - - {11 534)
Net profit for the year - - - - - - 353 140 $$3 140 359901
Foreign curnency translation results - - 281 842 - - - - 281 842 {24367
Capilal increass 14700 500 - - - = - 15 200 293 563
Capilal Deczease (5361) - - - - - - (5361 (80477)
Change in Noa-controlling interests 17057 - - k] 33 18 88 17966 {250 664)
‘Transfer 1o general zeserve - - - 3] 593 - - {31 593) - -
Less of Ceatol { 450 261) - 5912 {41517 (36 363 {19 936) (647 258 (1190918} -
Disposal pet profit br the period of the oon- _ _ _ _ _ . _
contolling intarsst untif the date of Loss of (433 889) {433 888)
The Impact o ncw egyptian accounting. - - - - - - - -
standard 22 N2
Tividends - - - - - - { 150 507) { 150 507) {154 414)
Balance 3t the end of the pecicd 314 141 2658 571 589 45 861 - - { 206 054) 728 158 1 840 720
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GB Auto (S.A.E)

Transtation of consolidated financial statements
Originally issuad in Arable

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended December 31, 2022

{In the nztes all amounts are shown In Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless olherwises stated)

25-Capifal Management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are fo safeguard fhe Group's ability to continue on a going concem basis in order to provide returns to sharehoklers
and benefits for other stakeholders who use these financiat statements and to maintain an optimai capital structure to reducing the cost of capital.

In erder to maintaln an optimal capital structurs, the Group may adjust the amaount of dividends paid ta shareholders, retum capital to shareholders or issus new
shares. The Group monitors capital on the basis of tha gearing ratio. This ratio s calculated as nat debt divided by {otal capital, Net dabt is caleulatad as total loans and
borrowings and notes payables, less cash and cash aquivalents. Total capital is calculated as aquity, as shown In the cansolidated balance sheet, plus nat debi,

The gearing ratic at December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 rastated ware as follows:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 Restated
Loans, borrowings and overdrafts B 580 544 17143 216
Short-term notes payable - suppliers 330 992 800 964
Total loans and notes payables 9311 536 17 944 180
Less: Cesh and cash cquivalent (4 098 083) (1 935 644)
Letters of credit (1 070 366) (791 566)
Letters of guarantee {332 359) (285919)
Net debt 3 810 733 14 931 051
Shareholders” equity 16 732 534 5739 354
Net debt to equity ratio 0.23 2.60
26-Loans, horrowings and overdralts
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Current portion Long-term portion Total Current portion Long-term portlan Total
Banks overdraft 4376 303 - 4 376 303 12 104 392 85128 12 190 520
Loans 1 663 528 2940 313 4 604 241 1 523 832 3 428 864 4 952 696
Total 6 040 231 2940 313 8 980 544 13 628 224 3 514 992 17143 216

ABanks overdeaflt

Less than one year

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
4376 303 12 104 392
4 376 303 12 104 392

B.Loans

The group {the non-banking financial services sector) obtalned madium and leng-term bank loans for the purpase of financing car sales toniracts and
operationa! and financial lease contracts. The repayment period for these loans reached 5 years for each operation financed by guaranteeing the financial
rights of the centracts concluded and arising from those contracts towards the clients of the group companles

Lass than one year

More than one year and less than five years

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2021
1 663 918 1523832
2940 313 3428 364
4 604 241 4 952 696
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27-Trade payahles and other credit balances

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Trads paysbles 2 855 987 2144 143
Other credic balances 443 745 305 269
Advances fram customers 282 774 1128 338
Tax Authority 14 625 3010z
Value 2dded tax 82588 28 8%%
Accrued expenses. 1095372 860 932
Accrued inlerest exoense §2785 32612
Depasits from others 58 681 43370
Notes payables 330 992 200 954
Right of use liability 580 374 4532
Dividends payable 7948 227
Deferred revenues 6511 15 200

5812382 5 508 513
28-Provistons Note No. Legal Clalos Warranty Provisien  Otter Provisions Total
Balance at January 1, 1022 Restated ML1) 15195 104 995 173 240 296 430
Provisions formed during the year 44 440 54 543 161 026 260 00%
Provisions utilized duciag the yeat - (25111 (3123 {28239
Provisions no longer required - [ 30067) (148 158) {178 225)
Effoet of movesnat of cuchange rates 296 4176 5798 10 170
Balance at December 31, 2022 52 931 108 536 158 733 360 250
Balanee at January 1,2021 T 140 79 296 101272 188 708
Provisions formed during the year 11055 40 707 187 350 138 152
Provisions utilized during the yoar - (3 558) {74 519) {74077
Provisicns be longer roquired - { 11 4509 { 45 904} {57354)
Effect of movement of exchiange tates - - 1 1
Balante at December 31, 2021 Restated 12 195 104995 173 240 196 430

Legal claims provisien

The amounts shown comprises of gross pravisions i respect of Tegal claims brouglt against the Group, and mauagement opinion, efter taking appropriale legal advice, that the outcome of these Jegal

claims will not ecceod significantly the provision lortaed as at December 31, 2022,

Warranty Provision

Tae Group provides warranty o its products and guarantees to elther fix or replace the products that are not working properly, and te Group has estimated its warranty provisions 1o bo EGP 108 536 at the
end ol the year for expected warranty claims in the Ligh! of masageent experience for repair and returns level in previous years The warranty provision includes a long-1em peovision amounted as at Decamber

31, 2022 EGP 13 915 (December 11, 2021 EGP 13 909).
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Originally issued in Arabic
GB Auto (S.A.E)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended December 31, 2022
{In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

28-Provisions {Continued)

Other provisions

Other provisions are related to claims expected to be made by a third party in connection with the Group operations.
The information usually required by accounting standards is not disclosed because the management believes that

to do so would seriously affects the outcome of the negotiation with that third party. These provisions are reviewed
by management yearly and adjusted based on latest developments, discussions and agreements with the third party.

A portion of the value of the formed and (no longer required) of the other provisions is included in the sales revenue.
The value of the formed provisions on September 30, 2022 amounted to 65 073 thousand Egyptian pounds and the
value of the no longer required provisions is 95 227 thousand Egyptian pounds EGP.

29-Financial risk management

1~ Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk {including foreign currency exchange rates
risk, price risk, cash flows and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group's efforts are addressed to minimize potential adverse effecis of such risks on the Group's financial
performance

A-Market risk

1.Foreign currency exchange rate risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange rate risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with respect
to the US Dollar and Euro. Foreign exchange rate risk arises from future commercial transaction, assets and
liabilities in foreign currency outstanding at the consolidated balance sheet date, and also, net investments in
foreign entity.

The below table shows the exposures of foreign currencies at the consolidated balance sheet date, presented in
EGP, as follows:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Assets Liabilities Net Net
US Dollars 292 695 (1 512 886) (1220 191) (1 191 480)
Euros 199 623 {28 170) 171 453 920 612
Other currencies 23 975 ( 47 545) (23 970) ( 79 546)

2.Price risk

The Group has no investments in a quoted equity security, so it's not exposed to the fair value risk
due to changes in prices

3.Cash flows and fair value interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises from long-term loans. Long-term loans issued at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Long-term borrowings issued at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk,

Loans, borrowings and overdrafts at the halance sheet date with variable interest rates are amounted to EGP
8 980 544 as at December 31,2022 (EGP 17 143 216 as at December 31, 2021).

Financlal assets that carry fixed interest rates are amounted to EGP 145 745 as at December 31, 2022
(EGP 359 595 as at December 31, 2021).

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Time deposits UsD 136 659 57 489
Time deposits EGP 9 086 302 106
145 745 359 595

-28-
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Criginally issued in Arabic

GB Auto {(S.AE)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended December 31, 2022
(In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

B-Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, and deposits with banks, as
well as credit exposures to wholesalers and retail customers, including outstanding accounts and notes receivables.

For banks, the Group is dealing with the banks which have a high independent rating and banks with a good solvency in
the absence of an independent credit rating.

For supptiers and wholesalers, the Credit Controllers assess the credit quality of the wholesale customer,
taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors.

For individuals the legal arrangements and documents accepted by the customer are minimizing the credit risk to its lowest
level. Provisions are accounted for doubtful debts on an individual basis.

The ratio of allowance for impairment of accounts and notes receivables to the total debts is as following:
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Notes and accounts receivables 7263 607 18 123 110

Expected credit loss for accounts and notes
receivable balances

366 7175 560 409

The ratio of the expected credit loss to

5.05% 3.09%
the total accounts and notes receivable

C-Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash, the availability of funding through an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities, Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, the Group's management
aims at maintaining flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines available.

D- Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial assets or liabilities with maturity dates less than one year is assumed to approximate their
carrylng value less any estimated credit adjustments. The fair value of financial liabilities — for disclosure purposes — is
estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the Group
for simifar financial instruments.

For the fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market, The Group uses a variety of methods and
makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at each balance sheet date. Quoted market prices or
dealer quotes for the financial instruments or similar instruments are used for long-term debt.

Other techniques, such as estimated discounted cash flows, are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial
instruments. At the balance sheet date, the fair value of non-current liabilities does not significantly differ from their
carrying amount, as the interest rates do not significantly differ.
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GB Auto (S.A.E)

Translation of consolidated financial statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended December 31, 2022

{In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Criginally Issued in Arabic

30-Invesments in subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements for GB Aute *S.A.E.”, include the financial statements of the following subsidiaries:

* Subsidiaries which control has been lest (Note 35 and Note 40)
Company Name

RG Invesiment “S.AE”

International Trade Agencies and Marketing Co. (ITAMCO) “5.AE"
Egyptian Vehicles Manufacturing Co. (Ghabbour Egypt} “S.AE.”
Ghabbour Continental Trading Co. (GCT) —Alex “S.A.E.”

GB Polo Buses Manufacturing “S.AE.”

GB Company for financial [2ase “S.AE"

GB Auto Rental For transportation “5.AE.”

Masters Autometive Company *S.A.E.”

Microfinance consultancy Services {Mashro'ey) “S.A.E.”

GB Logistics “S.A.E”

GE Capital holding for financial investments S A.E."

Gulf Company

Ghabbour Al Qalam

GB Global Company

GBER Auto Company

GBR Services Company

Egypt Auto Mall Company for used car “S.A.E.”

GB El Bostan

Ghabbour general trade

Pan African Egypt Company for il “S.AE.”

Tires & more Cotnpany for car services “S.AE™

Ready Parts for autometive spare parts “S.A.E"

GB for Import & export
Tasaheel Microfinance Company ((Tasaheel)) “S.AE.”

Enginzering Company for transportation maintenance El Mikaneeky

Egyptian Intemational Maintenance and cars Manufacturing Company EIAC “S.A.E.”

GB Finance S.AR.L.

-30-

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
99.99% 59.99%
99.45% 99.45%
99.53% 09.53%
100.00% 100.00%
B0.00% 80.00%
100.00% 100.00%
100.00% 100.00%
75.00% 75.00%
571.26% 57.26%
95.98% 99.98%
95.00% 99.00%
100.00% 100.00%
68.00% 68.00%
100.00% 100.00%
54.00% 54.00%
48.80% 48.80%
99.00% 99.00%
G0.00% 60.00%
25.00% 25.00%
100.00% 100.00%
100.00% 100.00%
100.00% 100.00%
100.00% 100.00%
57.26% 57.26%
55.00% 65.00%
100.00% L00.00%
100.00% 100.00%
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Translation of consolidated financial statements

Originally issued in Arabic
GB Auto (S.A.E)

Notes to the consclidated financial statements for the financial year ended December 31, 2022
{In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyplian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

BBAL Blue Bay Auvte Loan Investments Cyprus LTD 100.00% 100.00%
Salexia L.T.D. Trading (Cyprus) 100.00% 100.00%
GB Capital Securitization S.A.E, 100.00% 100.00%
GB Real Estate Mortgage Finance B.V. 100.00% 100.00%
GE Capital BY 100.00% 100.00%
TFransport Vehicle Distribution TVD 8.AE. 51.00% 51.00%
Automebilk S.AE 65.00% 65.00%
GB Finance Lease BV 100.00% 100.00%
GB Operational Lease BY 100-00% 100.00%
GB Consumer Finance BV, 100.00% 100.00%
SME's credit Faciliities company B.V. 160.00% 100.00%
GB Global BV 100.00% 100.00%
GB Automative For Trade and Manfacture 10:.00% -
SME Credit Eteman 100.00% 106.00%
International Company For car components (5.A.E) 51.00% -
GB Kinya 100.00% -
* Microfinance consultancy Services (Mashro'ey) “S.AE"” - 57.26%
* Tasaheel Microfinance Company ((Tasaheel)) “5.A.E.” - 57.26%
* MNT for SME Development “S.AE" - 57.26%
*MNT Investment B.V. (Netherland) - 57.26%
* Rassedy S.A.E. - 55.10%
* GB Microcredit BY - 57.26%
* Rassedy For Collection S.A.E - 55.10%
* Halan Consumer Finance - 57.26%
* Talabiya For Distrbution - -

* Talabiya For Distrbution B.V. - -

31- Payment under Investment fair value through
profit angd losses

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Auto Market Campany - 54 456
GEM Global 72 72
Total 72 54 528

32-Capital Comrnitments

The capital contractual expenditure of the Group at the consolidated financial statements date reached
EGP 463 730 at Decernber 31,2022 {EGP 98 353 as at December 31, 2021) represented in the amount to be paid upon
the completion of the new production lines under construction and other branches across the country.

33-Contingent liabilities

There are contingent liabilities on the Group represented in letters of guarantee .The balance of the latters of guarantze
granted by the Group in Egyptian Pounds and foreign currencies through its ordinary business, presented in EGP are as
follows:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 Restated

usD 1573 452 2 566 108

EGP 138 112 1164 349
Japanese Yen 72 210 9752

Euro 3620 7026

Crona Swidish 64 052 -

CNY - 124

«31-
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GB Auto (S.AE)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the fnancial year ended Cecember 31, 2022

{In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Translation of consolidated financial statements

Originally issued jn Arabic

34-Related party transactions

The subsidiaries have current accounis with related parties which Include all payments made on behalf of or through the subsidiaries. The
subsidiaries collect and pay these amounts regularly.

Balances due from and to related parties are as follows:

Due from related parties

El Bostan Holding

SARL SIPAC - Algeria

Algematoo — Algeria

MNT Investment B.V. Group

Kassed Shareholders’ Current Account
El Qalars Sharchalders’ Carrent Account
Auto Market mise

Tatal

Impairment of due from related partics

Due to velated parties
Marco Polo Company
EQI

Al Watania for car accessories
and spare parts

Gaya
Wahdan Company
EL Ghalban Company

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
103 091 66 865
18 015 11 251
41 048 27 291
81 517 92 505
- 10 803
3 960 2 520
- 18 721
249 631 229 958
( 64 623) { 36 730)

185 008 193 228
December 31,2022 December 31, 2021
93 587 59 545

- 761
8084 8 084
- 10 345
68 68
- 47 195
101 739 125 998
-32-
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Translation of consalidal anglal stataments
‘Qriginally ssued in Arable
GB Auto (S.AE)
Notes to tha [idated finanglal far the fi fal year ended Dacember 31, 2022

In the notes all amounts ara shown in Thousand E;

The following Is the nature and the values for the most significant transactians with the related- parties during the year:

‘Transaction smonnt

Reluted party inime Relutlon type Transnction pamre December 31, 2022 December 31,2023
Executive BOD Members Baard of Direciars Top Menagement Salaries 43 591 40 070
Al Watania for Vehlcles
Acccssarics and parts Refated Pazty Purchases 11
SARL SIPAC - Algeria Related Party Cash kranster 16754 -
Kagsed Sharcholders’ curtest Sales - -
i Shareholder in one of the subsidiarics
Cash transfer - (7 748)
Salas {108 271}
S Dol Shorsholdet CUTEE! Sty fnome of e mbsidirics
Sarvices 3960 34 427
Marco Folo Company Sharcholder in poe of the: subsidiaries Services {34 0ay) 113
Algemateo - Algeria in voc ofthe subsidiaries Cash e 13 157 2021
- Foreign Cumency translation 4,
Bostan Holding Related Party ot {38 216) 127
MNT lvestmyst BV. Growp  Related Farty Cash: tranafers {10 388) (85 645)
Gaya Shareholder in one of1he subsidiaries Cash transfery 10 245 T
El Ghalban Sharsholder inone of the subsidinries Cash tansiers - T8

35- Investment In assoclates

Cowteibutan percentage December 31,2020 Net Profit fLasscs far Additicny Dispran] Duriag tke Dividends December 11, 2022
the vear: during the year year Di
MNT Ivestment B.Y. Growp 49.50% - 39 552 5517 370 - - 9 456 932
Halan fr Information rechnology 40.13% 535 869 39 148 118 618 {693 635) - -
Bedala fr Real estate Financing 33.33% s2821 18 421 - - (6 143) 84 89%
Tokyo Marine 37.50% 24420 (6 544) - - - 17876
612 910 100 587 9 535 5838 [ 693 63%) (6143 9§52 06
360 1her bivestinents with fair value through profit and losies
Contribution percentage December 31,2022 December 31,2021
Sly reality bolding T-49% 103 500 103 300
Mlana company fo7 cax service 23.60% 2000 -
Saalrapplication 17.50% 500 -
Tawilqla .com 10.00% 00 500
106 500 104 000
=33
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GB Auto (S.AE)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended December 31,2022
(In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

Translation of consolidated financiak statements

Oripinally issued in Azabic

37- Income statement according to expense nature

Operating Revenue

Operating Cost
Graoss Profit

Other income

Provisions no longer required

Gain from sale & Revaluation of investment
Interest income

Installment sales interest

Bank charge

Intersst expense

Salaries & Benefits

Selling & Marketing

Rents

Net Gain/Losses foreign exchange transaction
Provisiens formed
Depreciation and Amortization
Consulting

Transportation

vehicles expense
Govemmental Fees & stamps
IT Expense

Cther Expeases

Penalities

Insurance

Security Expense

training employees
RepairMaintenance Expenses

Administration Supplies
Utilities

Donations & Puplic relation
Medical Fund

Freipght

Net profit for the year before income tax

38- Securitized Operations

December 31, 2021
December 31, 2022 Restated
2% 789 079 31 437 533
{21 676 145) (25 134 950)
112534 6302 573
285 557 184 364
86 206 46 533
100 587 { 40 592}
147 472 149 652
19 280 20 380
( 134 947) ( 86 421)
{753 710) (647 125)
{2514 60T) {2 124 611)
( 181 449) (239 557}
(121 486) ( 86 048)
(239 027) 11 544
(315 994) ( 177 470)
(301 491) { 235 360}
{272 843) (137 137}
{43 101) {42782)
{72 258) { 61 785)
(98 749) {39919
( 83 842) {73 145)
{154 854) {30 086)
(47 469) { 23 466)
{26 451) ( 1B 475)
(24 500) (27 119)
(27 222) { 198)
{1308 {1261)
( 65 493) { 50 876)
( 26 586) {24 770)
(60 6235) (127 670)
( 69 545) {78 433)
(14307 (9 454)
11 300 420 2 331 686

During the period the group (the non-banking financial services sector) sighing into money transfer contracts and the data on securitization operations are as follows:

The securitization portfolio consists of financial rights and deferred dues secured by various guarantees in favor of the assignor, which have been transferred to the
assigne.The assignor has transferred financial rights and deferred payment dues for the purpose of issuing securitized bonds.

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Total Value Falr Value Total Value Fair Value
19 146 302 12 396 833 11 764 213 10 565 882

-34-
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Originally issued jn Arabic
GB Auto (SAE)
Notes to the consalidated financlal statements for the firancial period ended December 31, 2022
{Tn the notes all amounis are shown [n Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

39-Bonds

The company has sdopted a bond issuance program on several isswes under the private placement system, which are tradable and non-transferable naminal bonds over several issues fora period of (3) years at an ameunt
©£2,000,000 Egyptian pousds (saly two billisn Egyptian puunds only) and for 2 period of no Less than For thirteen months for each issue, and with an equal rank in the priority ofpaymmt and gummce with the rank of
the current and fiture Ipng-term financial debts of the issuing company with the exception of the legatly established privileges and with the exception of the secured loans joned in the i in
accordanee with the decision of the Board of Direciors of the Fma.ncul Supervisory Authority No. 54 of 2014 and its amendments And at a rominal value of (100) pounds per bond.

The first version of the program was launched at an amount of 700 million Egyptian paunds on 23/06/2022, as follows:

Part (A): Nominal bonds that are iabl ible 1o shares and nat subject to accelerated callvup for a period of thirteen (13) months starting from the day following the date of closing the subscription doar,
with a value of EGP 300,000,000,000 (only thres hundred million Egyptian pounds). With a nominal value of 100 EGP (only ane hundred Egyptian pounds) per bond, it is to be consumed monthly as of the first monts
from the date of closing the subscription door with a fixed monthly installment amounting to 23 076 923 Egyplian pounds and with a fixed annual retarn of 14%, caleulated starting from the day {bllowing the date of
closing the subscription door 1t is paid monthly, starting from the first month of the subscription closing date.

Part (B): Nominal bonds that are negotiable, non-convertible into shares, and subjest to secelerated call-up starting from coupan No. {14} (the 14th month of issuance) and for a period of sixty (60) manths starting from
thenext day from the date of closing the subscription door, with a total value of 400,000,000,000 EGP (only four hundred million Egyptian pounds) with a nominal value of 100 EGP (only one hundred Egyptian
pounds) perbond to be amortized over a peried of 60 months stating from the first month of the subseription closing date with a fixed monthly installment 667 666 EGP 6 with a fixed annual retum It amounts to 13.5%
and is calculnted starting from the day following the ¢losing date of the subscription and is paid monthly, starting fram the &irst month of the closing daie,

December 31, 2022
Convert from fong
Total Vajus Barrowing Cost Paled Net
to ahort term
Istallments Due within a year 356 922 077 {1 907 072 60 534 160 {174 011 703} 241 538 462
Istallments Over ayear 343 076 923 {2 542 763) {60 534 160) - 280 000 000
Total 700 000 009 {4 449 335) - {174 011 703) 521 538 462
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GB Auto (S.A.E)
Notes to the fi fal Tor the 1 perlod ended December 31, 2022
(In the notes all zre shown ta Th d E; Ppunds unless otherwise stated)

40- Lot af control on subsidlany

During the year 2022, the company sold a share by 7. 55’- in the MNT BV group of companies, often the percentage of the company afier the sale became 49.5% , accordingly, it [ost contral oo the MNT
BY group of companies, after that the eomp: ite the ining shares at the fair value in the MNT BV group of companies oa the date of loss of control, there's a profits resulting from the re-
measurement at fair value, and it was ctassified to the :Fmﬁt and Losses dnnng the year.

‘The company has applied the eccouniing treatment related to the 1ogs of conirol oo the subsidiary in accordance with the requirements of Egyptian Accounting Standard No, (42} Consolidaied Pinancial
Statements,

40-1 Gain frowm sale of Investment

December 31, 2022
Proceed fom sale 7.5% from shares of MNT BV Group 1361 104
* Payment will be collect at first quarter at 2023 258 302
Expenses related to the sale of shere have not been paid ( 126 600}
Net sale value 1432 206
‘The bock value of the sald shares at the date of loss of control {305 336)
Gain for the group from sale of 7.5% from sbarcs of MNT BV Group 1127470

* The payment was collected on February 9,2023.

40-2 Gain from revaluatipn investment at fair value
December 31, 2022

Net book value of the investment {303 338)
Disposal ihe bock value of the asseis and liabilities of the subsidiary at the date of Joss of coatrol (3 135 110
Dispasal tlie bock value of the Non-Contralling interest a1 the date of loss of control 1190917
Net revatuation of investment at fair value through profil and losses 9 417 370
Gain for the group from revaluation of the investment In assoclates 7079 839
Total Gain from Sale & revaluation of & in i & 207 309

The followlo; is a ftatement of the net predlts of MNTRE Group during the period coding In 2

The perled from
Janovary 1, 2022 until the
date of Loss of contrel
Operating revenue 5207 226
Expenses (3 788 586)
Net prafit for the year befove income tax 1418640
Incame Tax (363 091)
Net profit for the perlad T 1055549
Sharcholder's of the parent company 621 709
Noa-controlling mterests 433 840
1055 549

—_—
40-3 Faor cash flaw purposes
Net Movement of investments in assaciates (8 842 252)
Net revaluation of investment a1 fair value through profit and losses 9 417 370
Disposal of investments in associates at the date of Loss af contrel {693 635)
Disposal the book vahue of the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary a1 the date of logs of ¢ontrol (3135 110)
Disposal the book value of the Non-Contrelling interest a1 the date of less of control 1190917
Net book value of the investment {353 338)
The net of invi in as shown in the statement of cash flows W
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GB Auto (S.AE)

Notes ta the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended December 31, 2022
(In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

41-1 Adjustment on Consolidated statement of financial position as in 31 December 2021

{All amounts in thousand Egyptian Pound)

Assets
Non-current assets

Property, plant, equipment and projects under constructio:

Assets right of use

Intangible assets and goodwill
Payments under investment
Investment in associate

Other investments

Long term notes receivables (Net)
Deferred tax assets

Investment property

Debtors and other debit balances
Subordinated Loan

Total non-current assets

Current assets

[nventories (Net)

Accounts and notes receivables (Net)
Debtors and other debit balances (Net)
Due from related parties

Cash on hand and at banks

Total current assets

Total assets

Equity

Issued and paid in capitat

Treasury bills

General risk reserve

Eegal reserve

Other reserves

Private risk reserve - Non banking financial service
Retained Eaming

Net Profit for the period / year

Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent

Non-conirelling interests
Total equity

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Loans

Bond Payable Long term

Long tzrm notes payables and creditors
Right of use Liability

‘Warranty provisions

Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Provisions

Current tax liabilities

Loans, borrowings and overdrafis

Pue to related parties

Trade payables and other credit balances
Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Translation of financial statements

Originally issued in Arabic

Note Before the restatment Adjustments After the restatment
(16) 4208 324 44 373 4 252 697
(17) 440 333 - 440 333
(18) 449 990 { 82 775) 367 215
31 54 528 - 54 528
(35) 622 910 - 622910
(36) 104 000 - 104 000
(12) 5 758 369 - 5 758 369
(B-10) 331 341 - 331 341
(193 50 905 - 90 905
(A-14} 638 262 - 688 262
12 748 962 { 38 402) 12 710 560
1y 4203342 - 4203 342
{13) 10 239 476 - 10 239 476
(14-B) 2 787 409 - 2 787 409
(34) 193 228 - 193 228
(15-A) 1935 644 - 1935 644
19 359 099 - 19 359 099
32 108 061 [ 38 402} 32 069 659
(20) 1054 010 - 1094 010
@1 (8510) - (8510)
(42) 49 472 - 49 412
(22) 523 961 - 523 961
23) 2140 621 - 2 140 621
@1 90399 - 90 399
547 392 { 106 502) 440 830
1 477 953 ( 69 442) 1408 511
5515298 { 175 9dd) 5739 354
(24) 1 649 730 (% 010) 1 640 720
7 565 028 { 184 954) 7380074
(26) 3514992 - 3514592
(39 388 083 - 588 088
327299 - 327 299
(28) 13909 - 13 909
(B-10) 348 657 - 348 657
4 792 945 - 4 792 945
(28) 225970 56 551 282 521
(10-A) 351279 - 351279
(26) 13 628 224 - 13 628 224
@4) 125 998 - 125 998
27 5418 617 50 001 5508618
19 750 038 146 552 19 §96 640
24 543 033 146 552 24 639 535
32 108 061 ( 3s 402) 32 069 639
-37-
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Translanon ot financial statements
Originally jssued {n Arabic
GB Auto (S.A.E.)
Notes te the consolidated financlal statements for the financial year ended December 31, 2022

(In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptlan Pounds unless otherwise stated)

412 Adj onC lidated income stat t s of I ber 31,2022
31 December 2021

(All amounts in thousand Egyptian Pound) Note Before the restatment Ad[ustments After the restatment
Cantinulng operations
Operating revenve 31 437 533 - 31437533
Operating cost (25 134 960} - (25 134 960)
Gross profit 6302 573 - 6302573
Other income &) 229 992 ( 45 628) 184 364
Selting and marketing expenses {1 849 389) - {1 849 389)
General and administrative cxpenses {1 576 850) [ 5913) {l 582 763)
Provisions and Impaitment of Current and Non-Current assets (Net) {8) (104 027) (26 911) (130 938)
Operating results 3002299 (78452} 2923 847
Finance costs (Net) T [ 551 569) - (551 569)
Investment in associates and liquidation looses [€£5))] { 40 592) - (40 592)
Net profit for the perled before income tax 2410138 {78452} 2372278
Income tax {expense) (10-C) { 563 274) - (563 274
Net profit for the peried after tax 1 846 864 (78452) 1809004
Attributable to:
Sharehalder's of the parent company 1 477953 { 69 442) [ 408 511
Non-controlling interests 368 911 {9010) 359901

536 564 Eam) 1tz
Basic eamings per share/ EGP 9 1,352 {0.063) 1.288

+36
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Tranglation of financial statements
Originally issued in Arabic
GB Auto (S.A.E.)
Hotes to the consolidated financial statements for the ficancial year ended December 31, 2(22

(In the motes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

41-5 Adjustment on consolidated Comprehusive tncome 31 December 2022

(All amounts in thousand Egyptiao Pound) Before the restatment Adjustments After the restatment

Net Profit for the period before income tax 1 846 864 (78 452) 1768412

Other comprehensive income items

Foreign currency translation difference (14 825) - (14 825)
Modification surplus of fixed assets result { 22 284) - (22 284)
Tetal other comprehensive income for the period before income tax (37109) - (37 109)
Income tax Related to other comprehensive income item 4 886 - 4 886
Other comprehensive income for the period after income tax (32223) - (32223
Total other comprehensive income for the period 1 814 641 (78 452) 1736189
Other comprehensive income is attributable to:
Owners of the company 1470 097 (69 442) 1 400 655
Non-controlling interests 344 544 {9010} 335534
1 814 641 (78 452) 1736 189
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Translation of consolidated financial statements

Originally issued in_Arabic
GB Aute (S.AE)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended December 31, 2022
(In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

42 —Private Risk Reserve

The risk reserve is represented in non-banking financial services, the effects of applying the Egyptian
Accounting Standard No. 47 “Financial Instruments” equivalent to 1% of the assets listed in the risk weights
in accordance with the provisions of the decisions issued by the Board of Directors of the General Authority
for Financial Supervision No. 200 of 2020 on some companies that engage in financial activities

Non-banking, and the balance on June 30, 2022 reached 90 million Egyptian pounds, and the balance of
this reserve will not be used after applying Standard No. 47 except after obtaining the prior approval of the
Authority.

43 — General Risk Reserve

A general risk reserve is the difference between applying the expected credit loss model according to the
non-bank financial companies' application of the Egyptian Accounting Standard No. 47 on January 1, 2021
for the provision for doubtful debts, and the management of the subsidiaries decided to create this reserve
until it was presented to the general assemblies of the subsidiaries for approval.

44- Reserve for financial Solvency

In accordance with Article No. (6) of the Financial Regulatory Authority’s Board of Directors Decision No.
(191) of 2018, a general provision is formed at the rate of (1%) of the total regular balances, and a provision
is formed on doubtful balances according to the rates of delay in collection divided into four Levels
according to the degree of regularity in payment for each individual case.

An amount of retained profits or losses is set aside in the solvency risk reserve account within equity, and
the reserve amount is calculated and always adjusted by deduction from or refund to the retained profits or
losses, by the amount of the excess of the impairment provision calculated in accordance with the solvency
standards over the provision for impairment of customers that was recognized in accordance with Egyptian
accounting standards at the date of the financial statements.

Account

(1) The balance of provisions for doubtful financing balances in

accordance with the basis for calculating provisions in Article 102 733
No. (6) of the Financial Regulatory Authority’s Board of Directors

Resolution No. {191) of 2018.

(2) Balance of net impairment of customers as recorded in the books

and according to Egyptian accounting standards (expected credit 92 022
losses).

The balance of reserve for financial solvency 10 711

-40-
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Transiation of consolidated financial statements

Originally issued in Arabic
GB Auto (S.A.E)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended December 31, 2022
(In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

45- Foreign currency exchange through comprehensive income

On December 27, 2022, Prime Minister Decision No. 1568 of 2022 was issued to amend some provisions
of the Egyptian Accounting Standards, represented in the issuance of Appendix (C) to Egyptian Accounting
Standard No. (13), amended in 2015, “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Currency Exchange Rates,” which
deals with accounting treatment This special optional accounting treatment issued in this appendix is not
considered an amendment to the amended Egyptian accounting standards currently in force, beyond the
time period for the validity of this appendix, and these treatments are as follows:

1- An establishment that, prior to the date of the abnormal exchange rate movements, may acquire fixed
assets, real estate investments, exploration and evaluation assets, intangible assets (other than goodwill)
and usufruct assets for lease contracts, funded by existing obligations. On that date in foreign currencies,
to recognize within the cost of those assets the currency differences resulting from the retranslation of the
outstanding liability balance relating to them on the date of the exchange rate movement using the exchange
rate on the date of the exchange rate movement. The facility can apply this option for each asset separately.

2- As an exception to the requirements of Paragraph No. 28 of the amended Egyptian Accounting Standard
No. (13) “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Currency Exchange Rates” regarding the recognition of
currency differences, an enterprise whose business results were affected by net profits or losses of currency
differences as a result of moving the currency exchange rate Foreign companies may recognize in other
comprehensive income the debit and credit currency differences resulting from the retranslation of the
balances of monetary items outstanding at the end of December 31, 2022 using the closing price on the
same date, minus any currency translation differences that were recognized within the cost of assets in
accordance with the previous paragraph. . Considering that these differences were mainly caused by the
decision of the unusual foreign exchange rate movements.

The company's management decided to apply accounting treatment No. (2), whercby the currency
differences charged to the statement of comprehensive income amounted to an amount 447 997 thousand
Egyptian pounds on December 31, 2022.

-41-
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Originally issued in Arabic

GB Auto (S.AE)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended December 31, 2022
{In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

46- Significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
summarized below:

A- Business combination

10
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-The Group accounts for business conibination using the acquisition method when control is transferred
to the Group.

-The consideration transferred in the acquisition is generally measured at fair value, as are the
identifiable net assets acquired.

-Any goodwill that arises is tested annually for Impairment. Any gain on a bargain purchase recognized
in profit or loss immediately.

-Transaction cost is expensed as incurred, except if related to the issue of debt or equity securities.

-The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the setflement of pre-exiting
relationship. Such amounts are generally recognised in profit or loss.

-Any contingent consideration is measured at fair value at the date of acquisition. If an obligation to
pay contingent consideration that met the definition of financial instrument is classified as equity, then
it is not re-measured, and scttlement is accounted for within equity. Otherwise, other contingent
consideration is re-measured at fair value at each reporting date and subsequent changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration are recognized in profit or loss.

1) Subsidiaries

- Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.

- The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity.

- The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from
the date on which control commences until the date on which control ceases.

2) Non-controlling interests
NCI are measured at their proportionate share of the acquirer’s identifiable net assets at the date of
acquisition.
Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in 2 loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions.

3) Loss of control

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary, and any related NCI and other components of equity. Any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at fair value
when control is lost.

4) Transaction elimination on consolidation
Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from
intra-group transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised gains arising from transactions with equity
accounted investees are eliminated against the investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in

the investee, Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
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GB Auto (S.AE)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended December 31, 2022
(In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

46 -Significant accounting policies (Continued)

B- Foreign currency
1) Foreign currency transactions

2)

Transactions in foreign currencies are franslated into the respective functional currencies of Group
companies at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency at the exchange raie at the reporting date.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the
functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
Foreign currency differences are generally recognised in profit or loss.

However, foreign currency differences arising from the translation of the following items are
recognised in Other comprehensive income:

* Available-for-sale equity investments (except on impairment, in which case foreign currency
differences that have been recognised in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss).

» A financial liability designated as a hedge of the net investment in a foreign operation to the
extent that the hedge is effective.

® Qualifying cash flow hedges to the extent that the hedges are effective.

Foreign Operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising
on acquisition, are translated at the exchange rates at the reporting date, The income and expenses of
foreign operations are translated at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Foreign currency differences are recognised in OCI and accumulated in the translation reserve, except
to the extent that the translation difference is allocated to NCI.

When a foreign operation is disposed of in its entirety or partially such that control, significant influence
or joint control is lost, the cumulative amount in the translation reserve related to that foreign operation
is reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

If the Group disposes of part of its interest in a subsidiary but retains control, then the relevant
proportion of the cumulative amount is reattributed to NCI.

When the Group disposes of only part of an associate or joint venture while retaining significant
influence or joint control, the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or
loss. Then the partial share must be reclassified.

C- Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s business, the operations and cash flows of
which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs at the earlier of disposal or when the operation meets
the criteria to be classified as held-for-sale,

When an operation is classified as a discontinued operation, the comparative statement of profit or
loss and OCI is re-presented as if the -operation had been discontinued from the start of the
comparative period.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended December 31, 2022
(In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

46 -Significant accounting policies (Continued)

D) Revenue from customer contracts.

Egyptian Accounting Standard No. 48 - Revenue from contracts with customers.

Egyptian Accounting Standard No. 48 specifies a comprehensive framework for determining the value
and timing of revenue recognition. This standard replaces the following Egyptian accounting standards
(Egyptian Accounting Standard No. {11) “Revenue” and Egyptian Accounting Standard No. (8)
“Construction Contracts”. Revenue is recognized

When a customer is able to control units or services, determining the timing of the transfer of control -
over a period of time or at a point in time - requires a measure of personal judgment.

Revenue Recognition

According to the nature of the group’s activities, in addition to the group’s current accounting policies,
the effect of Egyptian Accounting Standard No. 48 on the recognition of revenue by the group will be
immaterial, as the net effect of retained earings amounted to 12.5 million Egyptian pounds.

The costs of assign a contract with customers

Under Egyptian Accounting Standard 48, some of the additional costs incurred in acquiring a contract
with a customer (“contract costs”), which previously did not gualify for recognition as an asset under
any of the other accounting standards, have been deferred in the consolidated statement of financial
position. The effect of capitalization of contracts costs resulting from the application of Egyptian
Accounting Standards (no.48)
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Originally issued in Arabic
GB Auto (8.A.E)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended December 31, 2022
(In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

46 -Significant accounting policies (Continued)
E- Employee benefit

1) Short — term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is
recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the
obligation can be estimated reliably.

2) Share —based payment arrangements
The grant-date fair value of equity-settled share-based payment arrangements granted to
employees is generally recognised as an expense, with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the vesting period of the awards. The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the number of awards for which the related service and non-market performance
conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognized is based on the
number of awards that meet the related service and non-market performance conditions at the
vesting date.
For share-based payment awards with non-vesting conditions, the grant-date fair value of the
share-based payment is measured to reflect such conditions and there is no true-up for
differences between expected and actual outcomes.

3) Defined contribution plans
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed as the related service
is provided. Prepaid confributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or
a reduction in future payments is available.
The Group pays contributions to the Public Authority for Social Insurance for their employees
based on the rules of the social insurance law no 79 for the year 1975. The employees and
employers contribute under this law with a fixed percentage of wages. The Group's
commitment is limited to the value of their contribution. And the Group’s contribution amount
expensed in profits and losses according to accrual basis.

4) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are expensed at the earlier of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when the Group recognises costs for a restructuring, If benefits are
not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months of the reporting date, then they are
discounted - before tax — to reflect the time value of money.

F- Finance income and finance costs
The Group’s finance income and finance costs include:
+ interest income.
» interest expense,
» Foreign currency gains or loss on financial assets and financial liabilities.
Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest method.

G- Income Tax
The recognition of the current tax and deferred tax as income or expense in the profit or loss for the
period, except in cases in which the tax comes from process or event recognized - at the same year
or in a different period - outside profit or loss, whether in other comprehensive income or in equity
directly or business combination.

-45.-



[ ]

N

1]

0 B B

1

ODoO0oogoogd

C O0O0o0mnQO

[

-

[

L

L

[

Translation of consolidated financial statements
Originally issued in Arabic

GB Auto (S.A.E)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended December 31, 2022
(In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

46 -Significant accounting policies (Continued)

1) Current income tax

The recognition of the current tax for the current period and prior periods and that have not been paid as
a liability, but if the taxes have already been paid in the current period and prior periods in excess of the
value payable for these periods, this increase is recognized as an asset. The taxable current liabilities

(assets) for the current period and prior periods measured at expected value paid to (recovered from) the
tax authority, using the current tax rates (and tax laws) or in the process to issue in the end of the financial
period. Dividends are subject to tax as part of the current tax, But do not be offset for tax assets and
liabilities onty when certain conditions are met.

2) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is not recognised for:

a. Taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.,

b. Temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction
that is not: 1) business combination

2)And not affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

¢. Temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements to the

extent that the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they
can be used. Future taxable profits are determined based on business plans for individual subsidiaries in
the Group. deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date, and recognised to the extent that it
has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria are met.

H-Inventories
Inventories are valued at cost or net realisable value whichever is lower. Cost is determined by the
weighted average method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials,
direct labour, other direct costs and an appropriate share of production overheads (based on normal
operating capacity) but excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.
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46 -Significant accounting policies (Continued)

I- Property, plant and equipment
1} Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses.
If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then
they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.
Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit
or loss.
The modified cost model was adopted which the cost and accumulated depreciation for some
categories of fixed assets (Machinery and equipment, Vehicles, Fumniture and office
equipment, Tools and supplies) are modified using modification factors stated in annex (A) of
EAS no. (13). The increase of net fixed assets which are qualified to modification, were
recognized in other comprehensive income items and was presented as a separate item in
equity under the name of "modification surplus of fixed assets”. The realized portion of
modification surplus of fixed assets is transferred to retained earnings or losses in case of
disposal or abandonment of the asset which qualified for modification or usage (depreciation
difference resulting from the adoption of the special accounting treatment).

2) Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the futare economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group.

3) Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their
estimated residual values using the (straight-line method) over their estimated useful lives for
each item, and is generally recognised in profit or loss.

Land is not depreciated. Estimated depreciation rates for each type of assets for current and
comparative periods are as follow:

Asset Depreciation rate
Buildings %4 — %2
Machinery & equipment %20 - %10
Vehicles %25 - %20
Fixtures & Office fumiture %33 - %06
IT infrastructures & Computers %25
Leaseheld improvements 20% - or lease period whichever is less

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.

4) Reclassification to investment property
The reclassification of assets to investment property when the use of a property changes from
owner-occupied to investment property.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended December 31, 2022
{In the notes all amounts are shown in Thousand Egyptian Pounds unless otherwise stated)

46~ Significant accounting policies (Continued)

5) Project under construction
The projects under construction recognized at cost. All expenses related to cost includes direct
and necessary to prepare the asset to the state that is ready to use and in the purpose for which it
was acquired for. The asset transferred from projects under construction to fixed assets when it
is completed and ready to use,

J- Intangible assets and goodwill

1) Recognition and measurement

2)

3)

I.  Goodwill:
Arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries is measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses.
II.  Other intangible assets:

Other intangible assets, including patents and trademarks, that are acquired by the
Group and have finite useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated
amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.

III. Computer software
Costs associated with developing or maintenance of computer software programmes
are recognised as an expense as incurred. Costs that are directly associated with
identifiable and unique software products controlled by the Company and will
probably generate future economic benefits beyond one year, are recognised as
intangible assets.
Expenditure, which enhances or extends the performance of computer software
programmes beyond their original specifications is recognised as a capital
improvement and added to the original cost of the software. Expenditure to acquire
computer software is capitalized and included as an intangible asset. Computer
software costs recognised as assets are amortised using the straight-line method over
their useful lives and not exceeding a year of 3 years.

IV.  Knowhow
The amounts paid against knowhow are recognized as intangible assets in case of
knowhow have a finite useful life and amortized over their estimated useful lives.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when the intangible asset will increase the
future economic benefits embodied in project, research, and development under
construction which is recognized as intangible assets. All other expenditure, including

expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands, is recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

Amortization

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated
residual values using the (straight-line method) over their estimated useful lives, and is
generally recognised in profit or loss.

Goodwill is not amortised.

Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date
and adjusted if appropriate.
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46 -Significant accounting policies (Continued)
K-Investment property

Investment property is property held by the Group for rental or rise in value, or both and initially measured
at cost and subsequently at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, and recognize in profit and
loss the depreciation expenses and impaimnent losses.

The depreciation of investment property calculated using (straight-line method) over their estimated useful
lives for cach type of investment property, land is not depreciated.

Any gain or loss on disposal of investment property (calculated as the difference between the net proceeds
from disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is recognised in profit or loss.

L - Financial instruments

EAS 47 — Defined the recognition and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
and some of non-financial items agreements for sale or purchase. This standard replaces EAS 25
financial instruments: presentation and disclosure and EAS 26 financial instruments.

The recognition and measurement and EAS 40 financial instruments disclosures applied on
2021 disclosures.

Financial assets and financial liabilities Classification and measurement

The new standard requires the company to valuate the classification of financial assets at the
company’s financial statements according to the financial assets cash flow conditions and the
company related business module for financial assets certain category.

EAS 47 has no longer available for sale classification for financial assets, The new standard
contains different requirements for financial asset in debit instruments or equity instruments.

The financial instruments must be classified and measured by one of the following:
¢ Amortized cost, which actual interest rate will be applied or
¢ Fair value through comprehensive profit and loss with subsequent reclassification to
profits and losses when the financial assets sale .
¢ fair value through profit and losses
a. Investments in equity instruments must be classified and measured by one of the
following methods except for those considered and applied owners’ equity accounting
¢ Fair value through other comprehensive income through subsequent reclassification to
profits and losses statement when financial assets have been sold
Fair value through profits and losses
b. The company initially continues in measurement of financial assets by using fair value
plus cost of transaction at the initial recognition except the financial assets measured at
fair value through profits and loss in accordance with the current practices, most of

financial assets classification have not been effected by the adoption of EAS 47 at 1
January 2021
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EAS 47 largely retains the current requirements including those in EAS 26 for financial
liabilities classification and measurements

The application of EAS 47 didn’t have a significant impact on the company’s accounting policies
related to financial Habilities and derivatives.

Impairment: -

c.EAS 47 uses the expected credit loss model, which replaces the exposure loss model EAS 26,
where there was no need for a provision for doubtful debts except in cases in which there is
actual loss incurred in confrast, the ECL model requires the company to recognize for doubtful
debts provisions on all financial assets included in amortized cost as well as debt instruments
classified as fair value through other comprehensive income since initial recognition regardless
of whether loss was incurred as a result, the company’s doubtful debts provisions has been
increased when applying EAS 47 at 1 January 2021.

Below are the main changes in the group's accounting policy for impairment of financial assets.

When determining a default for the purpose of determining the risk of a default, the entity shall
apply a default definition consistent with Identification used for internal credit risk management
purposes of the relevant financial instrument and theoretical qualitative indicators when
appropriate. However, it is a rebuttable assumption that the default does not occur later when the
financial asset is due.

for a period of 90 days unless an entity has reasonable and supportive information to demonstrate
that the non-satisfactory defauit criterion is the most appropriate.

The default definition used for these purposes is applied consistently to all financial instruments
unless information is available.

Which prove that non-consensual recognition of the other is not appropriate for a particular
financial instrument.

A three-stage approach is applied to measure expected credit losses for financial assets listed at
cost

depreciated and debt instruments designated as Fair value through other comprehensive income.
Assets are transferred through

The following three stages are based on the change in the quality of credit ratings since initial
recoguition for these assets :

Principle of these assets

e Stage one: 12-month expected credit losses

For exposures that have not resulted in a quantitative increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a portion of the credit risk is recognized. Lifetime ECL based on the probability of
default occurring over the next 12 months
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s Stage two: Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired

For credit exposures that have resulted in a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, but not Credit impaired, lifetime expected credit losses are recognized.

» Stage Three: Lifetime Expected Credit Loss Financial assets are credit-impaired when
the One or more events that have a detrimental effect on the estimated future cash flows
of those assets Finance.

-  Measurment

The company apply the simplified approach to calculate expected credit losses for the Auto
&Auto related sector companies due to the absence of an important credit component
associated with their contracts with customers while apply for the non-banking financial
sector companies, the general approach was applied to calculate expected credit losses due to
the presence of an important credit component in contracts with customers of that sector,

- Hedge accounting

Egyptian Accounting Standard No. 47 increases the company's ability to apply hedge
accounting. In addition, it has been Align the requirements of the standard more closely with
the company's risk management policies, so high coverage will be measured in the future.

M- Share capital

1) Ordinary Shares

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognised as a deduction
from equity. Income tax relating to transaction costs of an equity transaction are accounted for in
accordance with EAS No. (24) “Income Tax™.

2) Repurchase and reissue of ordinary shares (treasury shares)

When shares recognised as equity are repurchased, the amount of the consideration paid, which
includes directly attributable costs is recognised as a deduction from equity. Repurchased shares
are classified as treasury shares and are presented as a deduction from equity. When treasury shares
are sold or reissued subsequently, the amount received is recognised as an increase in equity and
the resulting surplus or deficit on the transaction is presented within share premium.

N- Provisions

Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.
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1) Warranties

A provision for warranties is recognised when the underlying products or services are sold,
based on historical warranty data and a weighting of possible outcomes against their associated
probabilities.

2) Legal Claims
rJ ) g

The recognition of the provision for legal claims when there are legal claims against the Group
and after receiving appropriate legal advice.

3) Other Provisions

Provisions are recognized when there are other expected claims from third parties with respect
to the activities of the Group and, according to the latest developments and discussions and
agreements with those parties.

O- Leases

This standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure
of leases. The objective is to ensure that lessees and lessors provide relevant information in a manner
that faithfully represents those transactions. This information gives a basis for users of financial

statements to assess the effect that leases have on the financial position, financial performance and
cash flows of an entity.

1

]

]

At inception of a contract, an entity shall assess whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration,

An entity shall determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both:

s Periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise
that option.

® Periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the lessee is reasonably certain not to
exercise that option.

As a lessor:

When the Company acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance
lease or an operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if its transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset. A lease is classified as an operating
lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
underlying asset. Whether a lease is a finance lease or an operating lease depends on the substance
of the transaction rather than the form of the contract,

Examples of situations that individually or in combination would normally lead to lease being
classified as a finance lease are:

A- The lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the lessee by the end of the lease
term.

B- The lessee has the option to purchase the underlying asset at a price that is expected to be
sufficiently lower than the fair value at the date the option becomes exercisable for it to be
reasonably certain, at the inception date, that the option will be exercised.

C- The lease term is for the major part of the economic life of the underlying asset even if tittle
is not transferred.

D- Atthe inception date, the present value of the lease payments amounts to at least substantially

all of the fair value of the underlying asset.
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- E- The underlying asset is of such a specialised nature that only the lessee can use it without
[ major modifications..
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46 -Significant accounting policies (Continued)

[ Recognition and measurement
' Initial measurement
B At the commencement date, a lessor shall recognise assets held under a finance lease in its statement

of financial position and present them as a receivable at an amount equal to the net investment in the

[ lease.

At the commencement date, the lease payments included in the measurement of the net investment

o in the lease comprise the following payments for the right to use the underlying asset during the lease
- term that are not received at the commencement date:
r A- Tixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments as described in paragraph B42), less

any lease incentives payable.

B- Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index
or rate as at the commencement date.

C- Any residual value guarantees provided to the lessor by the lessee, a party related to the
lessee or a third party unrelated to the lessor that is financially capable of discharging the
obligations under the guarantee. The exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise that option.

D- Assessed considering the factors described in paragraph B37 (payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option).

E- Terminate the lease.

m

Operating leases
Recognition and measurement

Recognition of the lease payments from operating leases as income on either a straight-line basis or
another systematic basis. The lessor shall apply another systematic basis if that basis is more
representative of the pattern in which benefit from the use of the underlying asset is diminished.

N6 O O A A O

Sale and leaseback transactions

If an entity (the seller-lessee) transfers an asset to another entity (the buyer-lessor) and leases that
asset back from the buyer-lessor, both the seller-lessee and the buyer-lessor shall account for the
transfer contract and the lease applying:

0

1) Assessing whether the transfer of the asset is a sale
The Company shall apply the requirements for determining when a performance obligation
is satisfied in EAS (48) to determine whether the transfer of an asset is accounted for as a
sale of that asset.

0ol

2) Transfer of the asset is a sale
a) If the transfer of an asset by the seller-lessee satisfies the requirements of EAS (48) to be
accounted for as a sale of the asset:
- The seller-lessee shall measure the right-of-use asset arising from the leaseback at the
proportion of the previous carrying amount of the asset that relates to the right of use

L
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retained by the seller-lessee. Accordingly, the seller-lessee shall recognise only the
amount of any gain or loss that relates to the rights transferred to the buyer-lessor.

- The buyer-lessor shall account for the purchase of the asset applying applicable
Standards, and for the lease applying the lessor accounting requirements in this
Standard.

b) If the fair value of the consideration for the sale of an asset does not equal the fair value
of the asset, or if the payments for the lease are not at market rates, an entity shall make
the following adjustments to measure the sale proceeds at fair value:

- Any below-market terms shall be accounted for as a prepayment of lease payments.

- Any above-market terms shall be accounted for as additional financing provided by
the buyer lessor to the seller-lessee.

c) The entity shall measure any potential adjustment required on the basis of the more readily
determinable of:
- The difference between the fair value of the consideration for the sale and the fair
value of the asset.
- The difference between the present value of the contractual payments for the lease
and the present value of payments for the lease at market rates.

3) Transfer of the asset is not a sale
If the transfer of an asset by the seller-lessee does not satisfy the requirements of
EAS (48) “Revenue from Contracts with Customers™ to be accounted for as a sale of the
asset:

- The seller-lessce shall continue to recognise the transferred asset and shall recognise
a financial liability equal to the transfer proceeds. It shall account for the financial
liability applying EAS (47) "Financial Instruments".

- The buyer-lessor shall not recognise the transferred asset and shall recognise a
financial asset equal to the transfer proceeds. It shall account for the financial asset
applying EAS (47) "Financial Instruments".

As a lessee:

At the commencement date, a lessee shall recognise a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, The
Company may elect not to apply that for the short-term leases and leases for which the underlying
asset is of low value, the lessee shall recognise the lease payments associated with those leases as an
expense on either a straight-line basis over the lease term or another systematic basis. The lessee
shall apply another systematic basis if that basis is more representative of the pattern of the lessee's
benefit.

Initial measurement of the right-of-use asset
The cost of the right-of-use asset shall comprise:

A- The amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability shall measure at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. The lease
payments shall be discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that
rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the
lessee shall use the lessee's incremental borrowing rate.

B- Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received.

C- Any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee.
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D- An estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing
the underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the
lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories. The lessee incurs
the obligation for those costs either at the commencement date or as a
consequence of having used the underlying asset during a particular period.

Subsequent measurement of the right-of-use asset
After the commencement date, a lessce shall measure the right-of-use asset applying
a cost model:

a) Less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

b) Adjusted for any re-measurement of the lease liability.
Initia]l measurement of the lease liability
At the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the lease liability at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payments shall be discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot
be readily determined, the lessee shall use the lessee's incremental borrowing rate,

Subsequent measurement of the lease liability
After the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the lease liability by:
a) Increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability.
b) Reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments.
¢) Re-measuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments.

Right-of-use asset and lease liabilities shall present in the statement of financial position
separately from other assets and other liabilities.

Lease contracts includes lessee performing maintenance and insurance for the leased asset, the
lease contract does not include any arrangements to transfer of ownership by the end of the lease
period.

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, a lessee shall allocate the consideration in the contract to each lease component on
the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components. As a practical expedient, a lessee may elect, by class of
underlying asset, not to separate non-lease components from lease components, and instead
account for cach lease component and any associated non-lease components as a single lease
component,
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Egyptian Accounting Standard No. (49 - Lease contracts

- The Egyptian Accounting Standard (49) replaces the Egyptian Accounting Standard No. (20) - the
accounting rules and standards related to financial leasing operations.

- Egyptian Accounting Standard No. (49) “Lease Contracts™ provides a single accounting model for
the lessor and the lessee where the lessee recognizes the right to use the leased asset within the
company's assets and recognizes a commitment which represents the current value of unpaid lease
payments within the company's obligations, bearing in mind that Leases are not classified to the
lessee as an operating lease or a finance lease. There are optional exemptions for short-term and
low-value leases.

- With regard to the lessor, the lessor must classify each of his lease contracts either as an operating
lease contract or as a finance lease contract.

- With regard to the financial lease, the lessor must recognize the assets held under a finance lease
contract in the balance sheet and display them as receivable sums in an amount equal to the net
investment in the lease contract.

- For an operating lease, the lessor must recognize lease payments from operating lease contracts as
income, either on a straight line basis or on any other regular basis.

Recognition and measurement

- Upon the commencement of the contract, the company evaluates whether the contract contains leass
arrangements, and for such arrangements for leasing contracts, the company recognizes Right of use
assets and liabilities for lease contracts, with the exception of short-term leasing contracts and low-
value asset contracts as follows:

- On initial recognition, the Right of use asset is measured as the amount equal to the rental obligation
measured initially and adjusted for pre-contract lease payments, initial direct cost, rental incentives,
and the discounted value of the estimated costs of dismantling and removing the asset.

In the subsequent measurement, the right of use base is measured at cost deducted from the
depreciation aggregate and the sum of the impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the Right of use
assets or the lease term, whichever is less.

- Lease commitment is measured at the beginning of the lease contract at the present value of the lease
payments unpaid on that date over the lease period. Lease payments must be deducted using the
country’s incremental borrowing rate in general. The company uses the additional borrowing rate as the
discount rate.

Then the lease contract liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.

The Right of use assets and lease obligation of the lease contracts will be re-measured later in the event
that any of the following events occur:
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s The change in the rental price due to the link t¢ the price or the rate that became effective in the
period.

s  Amendments to the lease contract
¢ Reassessment of the lease term

Leases of non-core assets that are not related to the main operating activities of the company, which are
short-term in nature (less than 12 months including renewal options) and low-value commodity leases
are included in the income statement as incurred.

Important rulings in determining the lease term for contracts that include renewal options

The term of the leasing contract determines, along with a period of time, the lease option contract, or
this right may be exercised, and to a reasonable extent, or periods covered by the option to terminate the
lease, may exercise this right.

The company has the option under some lease contracts to lease assets for additional periods, the
company applies judgment in assessing whether it is certain and to a reasonable degree to exercise the
renewal option, and this means that all relevant factors that create an economic incentive to practice
renewal are taken into consideration, afier the start date

The company shall return the lease term if there is a major event or change in the circumstances under
its confrol that affects its ability to exercise (or not exercise) the renewal option (for example) a change
in the business strategy.

P- Segmental reports

A segment is a group of related assets and operations that are subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of other sectors or within a single economic environment subjects to risks and

returns that relate to it, other than those relate of segments operating in a different economic
environment.

Q-Dividends

Dividends are recorded in the Group’s financial statements in the period in which they are approved
by the Group’s shareholders.

R-Comparafive figures

Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation
in the current period.
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47— Significant Events

The Central Bank of Egypt decided, in its session held on October 27, 2022, to announce the
implementation of a flexible exchange rate system for pricing foreign exchange, provided that the
buying and selling prices of currencies are determined in Egyptian pounds based on the conditions of
supply and demand, and accordingly the exchange rate of the US dellar increased against the
Egyptian pound. In conjunction with the liberalization of the exchange rate, the Central Bank of

Egypt also raised the deposit and lending rates, which affected the company's revenues and financing
cOosts.

48— Subsequent Events

The Board of Directors of GB Capital for Financial Investments, which is owned 99.99% of
GB Auto, on September 6, 2022, by agreeing to negotiate to enter into an agreement to sell an indirect
percentage representing 45% of the shares of GB Lease Company. On December 18, 2022,
GB Capital for Financial Investments signed a definitive agreement to sell an indirect percentage
representing 45% of the shares of GB Financial Lease Company. With a total value of 855 million
Egyptian pounds, and on January 19, 2023, GB Capital for Financial Investments S.A.E. carried out
the final implementation of the sale of an indirect percentage representing 45% of the shares of GB
Leasing Company S.A.E. With a total value of 855 million Egyptian pounds. The percentage of
GB Auto's indirect ownership in GB Lease, after executing the sale transaction, becomes 55%.
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